
           

Planning and
Zoning Commission
Study Session

  
  

January 19, 2022 | 4:30 p.m.
 

Chandler City Council Chambers       
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

  

 
 
  

Commission Members
Chair Rick Heumann
Vice Chair David Rose
Commissioner Erik Morgan
Commissioner Sherri Koshiol
Commissioner Mike Quinn
Commissioner Jeffrey Velasquez

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is
hereby given to the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the general
public that the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a STUDY SESSION open to the
public on Wednesday, January 19, 2022, at 4:30 p.m., at City Council Chambers, 88 E.
Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ. One or more members of the Commission may attend this
meeting by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and
services by contacting the City Clerk's office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make
requests in advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 3 Planning and Zoning Commission



Planning and Zoning Commission
Study Session Agenda - January 19, 2022

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or
Commission from discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your
concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the Board or Commission, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

1. December 15, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
  Move Planning and Zoning Commission approve Planning and Zoning Commission

meeting minutes of the Study Session of December 15, 2021, and Regular Meeting of
December 15, 2021.

 

2. Preliminary Development Plan, PLH21-0071 Kerry’s Car Care, located on 1.1-acre
site, generally located south of the southeast corner of Cooper and Pecos Roads.

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission continue Preliminary Development
Plan PLH21-0071, Kerry's Car Care to the March 2, 2022 Planning and Zoning
Commission hearing, as requested by the applicant.

 

3. Preliminary Development Plan, PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym, 455 E. Warner Road,
generally located east of the southeast corner of Warner Road and Arizona Avenue

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym increasing the maximum size
permitted for exterior wall signs, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning
staff.

 

4. Preliminary Development Plan and Preliminary Plat, PLH21-0058/PLT21-0054
Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park, located at the northeast corner of Germann
Road and Hamilton Street 

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH21-0058 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park for site layout and
building architecture for three flex industrial buildings on approximately 16.3 acres,
subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary

Page 2 of 3 Planning and Zoning Commission



Plat PLT21-0054 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park, subject to the condition as
recommended by Planning staff.

 

5. Use Permit, PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church, 800 W Galveston
Street, generally located east of the northeast corner of Galveston Street and Alma
School Road

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Use Permit
PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church to continue the utilization of an existing
modular classroom building, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

 

6. Use Permit, PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality DBA Recreo, located at 28 S. San
Marcos Place, generally located ¼ mile south of the southwest corner of Arizona
Avenue and Chandler Boulevard. 

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Use Permit case
PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality DBA Recreo to allow live entertainment and speakers
inside and on an outdoor patio, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning
staff.

 

7. Entertainment Use Permit, PLH21-0087 The Forum, located at 2301 S. Stearman
Drive, generally located west of the northwest corner of Gilbert Road and Insight
Way

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of PLH21-0087 The Forum
Use Permit expansion of premises for a Series 6 Bar license and an Entertainment Use
Permit for live music inside and on an outdoor patio located at 2301 S. Stearman Drive,
subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

 

8. Cancellation of the February 2, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing
  Move Planning and Zoning Commission cancel February 2, 2022, Planning and Zoning

Commission Hearing. 
 

Calendar
 

9. The next study session will be held before the regular meeting on Wednesday,
February 16, 2022, in the City of Chandler Council Chambers, 88 East Chicago
Street. 

  

 

Adjourn
 

Page 3 of 3 Planning and Zoning Commission



ITEM  1 

Planning & Zoning Commission      Development Services  Memo No. 
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator
From: Julie San Miguel, Sr Administrative Assistant 
Subject:Study Session & Regular Meeting Minutes of December 15, 2021, Planning

and Zoning Commission

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission approve Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting minutes of the Study Session of December 15, 2021, and
Regular Meeting of December 15, 2021.

Attachments
December 15, 2021 Study Session Minutes 
December 15, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 





















ITEM  2 

Planning & Zoning Commission      Development Services  Memo No.
PZ22-004
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Kristine Gay, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH21-0071 Kerry’s Car Care

 

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission continue Preliminary Development
Plan PLH21-0071, Kerry's Car Care to the March 2, 2022 Planning and Zoning
Commission hearing, as requested by the applicant.

Background/Discussion
The applicant requests to defer this item to the March 2, 2022 Planning and
Zoning Commission hearing to allow additional time to work with residents.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 



E PECOS RD

S C
OO

PE
R 

RD

E FLINTLOCK WY

S C
AN

YO
N 

OA
KS

 W
Y

E HAWKEN WY

E GERONIMO ST

S S
OH

O 
LN

E MORELOS ST

E WINCHESTER WY

E KESLER LN

S C
OT

TO
NW

OO
D 

ST

E H
AW

KE
N PL

E DANA WY

S A
MB

ER
 S

T

E WINCHESTER PL

E SPRINGFIELD PL

S E
DITH

 DR

E DERRINGER WY

E BROWNING PL

S W
AY

NE
 D

R

S M
AR

IE 
DR

E LONGHORN PL

S E
UC

AL
YP

TU
S 

PL

S E
DI

TH
 C

T

S E
UC

AL
YP

TU
S 

PL

S C
OT

TO
NW

OO
D 

ST

S A
MB

ER
 S

T

E BROWNING PL

E GERONIMO ST

E FLINTLOCK WY

E BROWNING PLE BROWNING PL

E MORELOS ST

E KESLER LN

E BROWNING PL

E SPRINGFIELD PL

S E
DI

TH
 D

R

S C
AN

YO
N 

OA
KS

 W
Y S S

OH
O 

LN

S W
AY

NE
 D

R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Co
op

er 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
Preliminary Development Plan for site
layout and building design

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-007612 Kerry's Car Care ´

^

PAD
Sirona

SF-8.5
Kempton
Crossing

PAD

PAD
Canyon Oaks Estates

PAD

COUNTY

PAD
Pecos
Aldea

PAD
Rio Del Verde

AG-1

PARK
Homestead

South
PAD

La Valeciana

PAD
Arizona Estates

PAD
Canyon Oaks

PAD

PAD



E PECOS RD

S C
OO

PE
R 

RD

E FLINTLOCK WY

S C
AN

YO
N 

OA
KS

 W
Y

E HAWKEN WY

E GERONIMO ST

S S
OH

O 
LN

E MORELOS ST

E WINCHESTER WY

E KESLER LN

S C
OT

TO
NW

OO
D 

ST

E H
AW

KE
N PL

E DANA WY

S A
MB

ER
 S

T

E WINCHESTER PL

E SPRINGFIELD PL

S E
DITH

 DR

E DERRINGER WY

E BROWNING PL

S W
AY

NE
 D

R

S M
AR

IE 
DR

E LONGHORN PL

S E
UC

AL
YP

TU
S 

PL

S E
DI

TH
 C

T

S E
UC

AL
YP

TU
S 

PL

S C
OT

TO
NW

OO
D 

ST

S A
MB

ER
 S

T

E BROWNING PL

E GERONIMO ST

E FLINTLOCK WY

E BROWNING PLE BROWNING PL

E MORELOS ST

E KESLER LN

E BROWNING PL

E SPRINGFIELD PL

S E
DI

TH
 D

R

S C
AN

YO
N 

OA
KS

 W
Y S S

OH
O 

LN

S W
AY

NE
 D

R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Co
op

er 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
Preliminary Development Plan for site
layout and building design

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-007612 Kerry's Car Care ´

^

PAD
Sirona

SF-8.5
Kempton
Crossing

PAD

PAD
Canyon Oaks Estates

PAD

COUNTY

PAD
Pecos
Aldea

PAD
Rio Del Verde

AG-1

PARK
Homestead

South
PAD

La Valeciana

PAD
Arizona Estates

PAD
Canyon Oaks

PAD

PAD



ITEM  3 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. 22-001
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From:
Subject: PLH21-0028 Gold medal Gym
Request: Request preliminary development plan approval to increase the maximum

size permitted for exterior wall signs.
Location: 455 E. Warner Road
Applicant:Ana Jones, 

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym increasing the maximum size
permitted for exterior wall signs, subject to the conditions as recommended by
Planning staff.

Background Data:
Subject site zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for light industrial (I-1),
as well as office, showroom, and select commercial uses
Original Rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan (DVR04-0036 Warner
Commerce Park) was approved in 2005 
Comprehensive Sign Package approved with DVR04-0036 Warner
Commerce Park in 2005
Zoning amendment (DVR07-0025 Warner Commerce Park) for expanded list
of permitted uses approved in 2007

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Warner Road & PAD for
light industrial South PAD for industrial

East PAD for industrial and
select commercial uses West PAD for industrial and select

commercial uses

Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development
(for PDP)
    Signage Permitted by

Current Comprehensive
Sign Plan (CSP) 

Proposed Sign
Improvements 

Conformance with
current CSP 

Sign
Quantity 

Up to 1 sign per façade
per tenant space 

North Façade: 1 West
Façade: 1 

Both signs
conform 

Sign
Dimensions 

Each sign is limited to be
5’ x 16’ and 80 sq. ft. or
less   

North Façade:
Generally 16’ 4” x 29’
and 198.11 sq. ft in
area   West Façade:
Generally 5’ x 16’ and
80 sq.ft in area 

  North Façade:
Exceeds size
criteria   West
Façade:
Conforms 

Sign Design  Reverse pan channel
with acrylic or aluminum
faces. Internally
illuminated or
non-illuminated. No
raceways allowed. 

North Façade: 1/8”
Acrylic and Vinyl faces
Aluminum returns  
West Façade: .125”
Aluminum
Halo illuminated 

Both signs
conform 

        

Review and Recommendation:
The current approved comprehensive sign plan (CSP) allows for a maximum sign
area of 80 square feet, with maximum dimensions of 5' in height and 16' in width,
with said sign(s) being located on the facades which are adjacent to the
interior tenant space.  It was previously anticipated that two tenants would occupy
the space adjacent to this north facade, which would have resulted in a maximum
total of 160 square feet of signage being permitted between the two signs.

Today, the building is fully occupied by one tenant, who is proposing one larger
sign, instead of two, on the north facade, fronting Warner Road.  The proposed
sign is 16'-4" in height and 28'10" in width for a total of 198.11 sq. ft. in
area.  Although the proposed sign exceeds the CSP permitted sign area, it meets
the zoning code requirements which allows up to 250 square feet of sign area.



The sign which currently exists on the north facade will be relocated to the west
facade. While it is important to consider as part of the overall signage that is
proposed for the building, it complies with the dimensional, quantity, and size
criteria of the current approved CSP.

Being that there is just one tenant occupying this building, the proposed signage
will still result in less total sign area than what may have been achieved if two or
more tenants filled the subject building.  For that reason, and based on the
proposed sign's compliance with the Zoning Code criteria, Planning staff finds the
request to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A virtual neighborhood meeting was held on September 28, 2021. No
residents attended the meeting and the applicant received no calls in
response to the neighborhood meeting invite.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any further
opposition to the proposed request for additional signage.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions: 

The wall mounted signage for Building Seven shall be in substantial
conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled "PLH21-0028 Gold
Medal Gym" and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File
No. PLH21-0028, modified by such conditions included at the time the
Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter
amended, modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.

1.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet 



N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E WARNER RD
N 

NE
VA

DA
 S

T

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 ST

N ITHICA ST

E CORPORATE PL

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 PL

E STOTTLER PL

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 S

T

E GILA LN

E TEMPLE ST

E HIGHLAND ST

E CALLE DEL NORTE

E MANOR DR

E EL MONTE PL

E HIGHLAND DR

E ESTRELLA DR

N 
JA

CK
SO

N 
ST

W GRACE BL

E COLT RD

E MARIPOSA PL
E COLT CT

N 
NI

CH
OL

AS
 D

R

E LOS ARBOLES PL

E BROOKS ST

E EL PRADO RD
E EL PRADO CT

N LAYMAN ST

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 C

T

N 
ITH

IC
A S

T

N JACKSON ST

E MANOR DR

E MARIPOSA PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
455. E. Warner Rd.
Request to amend Preliminary Development Plan
to update comprehensive sign plan for the site to
allow a maximum of 200 square feet of sign area

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Warner Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym ´

^

Park
Stonegate Park

PAD

PAD

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

MF-3

Town of Gilbert

C-3

PAD

AG-1

MH-1

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD

I-2

PAD

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD
San Vincente

PAD
Crystal Cove

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Biscayne Bay

PAD C-2

Park
Espee Park

and
Chandler Bike Park

PAD

PAD
I-1

PAD

PAD

C-3AG
-1

PAD
Alante
at the

Islands



N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E WARNER RD
N 

NE
VA

DA
 S

T

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 ST

N ITHICA ST

E CORPORATE PL

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 PL

E STOTTLER PL

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 S

T

E GILA LN

E TEMPLE ST

E HIGHLAND ST

E CALLE DEL NORTE

E MANOR DR

E EL MONTE PL

E HIGHLAND DR

E ESTRELLA DR

N 
JA

CK
SO

N 
ST

W GRACE BL

E COLT RD

E MARIPOSA PL
E COLT CT

N 
NI

CH
OL

AS
 D

R

E LOS ARBOLES PL

E BROOKS ST

E EL PRADO RD
E EL PRADO CT

N LAYMAN ST

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 C

T

N 
ITH

IC
A S

T

N JACKSON ST

E MANOR DR

E MARIPOSA PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
455. E. Warner Rd.
Request to amend Preliminary Development Plan
to update comprehensive sign plan for the site to
allow a maximum of 200 square feet of sign area

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Warner Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym ´

^

Park
Stonegate Park

PAD

PAD

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

MF-3

Town of Gilbert

C-3

PAD

AG-1

MH-1

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD

I-2

PAD

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD
San Vincente

PAD
Crystal Cove

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Biscayne Bay

PAD C-2

Park
Espee Park

and
Chandler Bike Park

PAD

PAD
I-1

PAD

PAD

C-3AG
-1

PAD
Alante
at the

Islands



PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym
Preliminary Development Plan for
Building 7 Wall-Mounted Signage

Development Booklet

Kristine Gay
Stamp



TRADEMARK 
 

trademarkvisual.com  3825 S. 36th Street Phoenix AZ 85040 602 272 5055 

 

May 7th, 2021 

City of Chandler 

Development Services Dept. Planning Division  

215 E. Buffalo St., 

Chandler, AZ 85225 

 

DESIGN REVIEW NARRATIVE:  

 

Our request is for and amendment at 3455 E Warner Rd Chandler, AZ 85225 to allow sign area to 

be increased to allow a maximum of 200 SF. The current tenant occupies the entire building and 

has a northern street frontage of 203 LF facing Warner Rd.  

 

The proposed sign as submitted is 198.11 sq. ft. in area. The sign we are proposing will be face 

illuminated using white LED, constructed with 1/8” acrylic for the face, 3” deep returns, 

constructed from .040 aluminum painted to match the face color. The overall scale of the sign is 

16’-4’’ H x 28’- 10” W and includes 3’ tall letter sets and a 8’-6”H x 9’-8”W star logo.  

 

The sign as shown is scaled to fit proportionately with the 203 LF of frontage facing Warner Rd and 

is compliant with the City of Chandler Sign Code and will be compatible with the architecture of the 

surrounding properties and add additional stye to the center.  

 

Reference the submitted drawings, for further detail and visuals. Please contact Ana Jones at 

Trademark Visual, Inc. located at 3825 S. 36 th Street Phoenix, AZ 85040 (602) 272-5055 with 

any other questions or required information. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Ana Jones  

(602)272-5055 

ajones@trademarkvisual.com 



3825 S. 36th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85040  602 272 5055  trademarkvisual.com © 2021 Trademark Visual, Inc.  ROC 204749

COMPANY

SUB LOCAL

ADDRESS

CITY STATE

SR

PM

JOB

DRAWING

DATE

SHEET

CLIENT SIGNATURE

LANDLORD SIGNATURE

APPROVED

APPROVED

DATE

DATE

82.38 sq.ft.

90.27 sq.ft.

25.46 sq.ft.

ILLUMINATED PAN 
CHANNEL 
LETTERS/LOGO 
FACES

1/8" White Acrylic
Vinyl Applied 1st Surface 
Translucent Red () 
Translucent Blue ( )  
RETURNS

3" Deep .040 Aluminum 
Painted; Satin Finish Crimson 
Red (MP 23966 ) Blue ()  
TRIM CAP

1" Trim Cap
Painted; Satin Finish Crimson 
Red (MP 23966 ) Blue ()  
BACKS

.063 Aluminum Backs 
ILLUMINATION

White LED
GE Tetra MAX 7100K 
INSTALLATION

Stud Mount to Wall w 1-1/2" 
Raw Aluminum Spacers as 
Required.

Gold Medal Gymnastics

455 E Warner Rd

Chandler, AZ 85225

BF

AFS

106694

0103ld

03/09/21

1.10

1

F.F.

41∕2"

9'-85∕16"

Project Detail
SCALE 1/4" = 1'0"

A
Qty: 1 /  Install

Night Simulation
NOT TO SCALE

C

198.11 A

Installation Mock-Up - North Elevation
APPROX. SCALE 1/16" = 1'0"

B
Frontage: 203' 00"

Illuminated PC Wall Sign 

±36'-6"
T.o.S.

End View

Section Detail - Typical Exterior
Pan Channel / Front-Illuminated / Stud Mounted

D

TRIM CAP

Plastic

FACES

1/8" White Acrylic
1st Surface Translucent Vinyl

BACKS

.063 Aluminum

ILLUMINATION

LED

HARDWARE

Aluminum Spacers
Fasteners & Shields

Appropriate to Wall Type

STRUCTURE

Existing Wall
Construction & Thickness
Varies Per Location

RETURNS

Aluminum Coil
Interior White Mill Finish

ENCLOSURE

Waterproof Box
Knockout Holes at Bottom

POWER SUPPLY

Tetra LED 24 Volt

PENETRATION

Secondary Wiring
Sealed

JBOX

Switch
Location & Type 
Varies Per Application

PRIMARY POWER

Isolated Circuit to
Disconnect Switch
(Provided By Others)

DRAIN COVER

1/4" Dia. Holes
Weep Hole Cover

Min. 2 Per Letter

8'-6"

16'-4"

3'-11∕2"

1'-63∕4"

1'-3"

1'-103∕4"

28'-105∕8"

16'-31∕2"

NEW SIGN



3825 S. 36th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85040  602 272 5055  trademarkvisual.com © 2021 Trademark Visual, Inc.  ROC 204749

COMPANY

SUB LOCAL

ADDRESS

CITY STATE

SR

PM

JOB

DRAWING

DATE

SHEET

CLIENT SIGNATURE

LANDLORD SIGNATURE

APPROVED

APPROVED

DATE

DATE

Gold Medal Gymnastics

455 E Warner Rd

Chandler, AZ 85225

BF

AFS

106694

0201ld

02/23/21

2.00

2

Existing - North Elevation

5'-0"

±31'-6"
T.o.S.

2'-71∕4"

1'-91∕4"

16'-0"

EQ EQ

12'-33∕16"

FIELD SERVICES

Remove Existing Wall Sign on 

North Elevation and Re-Install 

on West Elevation as Required.

Project Detail
SCALE 1/2" = 1'0"

A
Qty: 1 /  Install

80.00 A

Installation Mock-Up - West Elevation
APPROX. SCALE 3/8" = 1'0"

C
Frontage: 255' 00"

Existing Halo-Illuminated Wall Sign

EXISTING HALO-ILLUMINATED
RPC LETTER
FACES

.125" Aluminum Faces
Painted; Satin Finish
Crimson Red (MP23966 )
RETURNS

3" Deep .063 Aluminum Returns
Painted; Satin Finish
Crimson Red (MP23966 )
BACKS

.150 Clear Lexan Backs
No Diffuser
ILLUMINATION

White LED
GE Tetra MAX 7100K
INSTALLATION

1 1/2" Aluminum Spacers
Mount To Wall As Required

Reverse Pan Channel Letter / LED Halo-Illuminated

Section Detail - Typical
B

FACES

Aluminum

LETTER BACKS

Clear Lexan

ILLUMINATION

LED

PENETRATION

Drilled Penetration
for Secondary Wiring

Sealed

ATTACHMENT

Fasteners & Shields per Wall Type
Non-Corrosive

RETURNS

Aluminum

WALL

Existing Wall
Construction & Thickness
Varies Per Location

POWER SUPPLY

12 Volt Power Supply
UL Listed

JBOX

Location & Type Varies
Per Application

PRIMARY POWER

Isolated Circuit to
Disconnect Switch
(Provided By Others)

SPACERS

Aluminum Spacers

DRAIN HOLES

1/4" Dia. Holes in Bottom of
Each Letter Section FABRICATION NOTE:

PENETRATIONS AT BOTTOM OF "GOLD MEDAL"
& TOP OF "GYMNASTICS"

Mock-Up -  Night Illumination

EXISTING SIGN BEING RELOCATED



3825 S. 36th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85040  602 272 5055  trademarkvisual.com © 2021 Trademark Visual, Inc.  ROC 204749

COMPANY

SUB LOCAL

ADDRESS

CITY STATE

SR

PM

JOB

DRAWING

DATE

SHEET

CLIENT SIGNATURE

LANDLORD SIGNATURE

APPROVED

APPROVED

DATE

DATE

2.01

1.01

203'

Gold Medal Gymnastics

455 E Warner Rd

Chandler, AZ 85225

BF

AFS

106694

0001ld

02/23/21

0.00

0

Site Map
NOT TO SCALE

A

Sign Location Plan

Existing Sign to be
Re-Installed on
West Elevation

New Location

N

New PC Wall Sign1.XX

Existing Re-Located PC Wall Sign2.XX

KEY

255'



ITEM  4 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. PZ22-005
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Lauren Schumann, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH21-0058/ PLT21-0054 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park
Request: Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for site layout and building architecture

for three flex industrial buildings

Preliminary Plat approval
 

Location: Northeast corner of Germann Road and Hamilton Street
Applicant:Charles Huellmantel; Huellmantel Affiliates 

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH21-0058 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park for site
layout and building architecture for three flex industrial buildings on
approximately 16.3 acres, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning
staff.

Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Plat PLT21-0054 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park, subject to the condition as
recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Approximately 16.3 acres 



Approximately 16.3 acres 
Subject site zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for light industrial (I-1)
uses in 2001, case included parcel to east zoned for self-storage facility
Separate PDP required for subject site 
Project consist of three flex industrial buildings allowing for a mix of light
industrial uses and ancillary offices

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North
Future Armstrong Way;
then unincorporated
agricultural 

South Germann Road then City of
Chandler's Tumbleweed Park 

East Self storage facility and
City of Chandler facility  West Unincorporated waste transfer

facility 

Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development
(for PDP)

Building Square Footage 

301,994 total square feet  
Building A: 75,256 square feet 
Building B: 108,596 square feet 
Building C: 118,142 square feet 

Building Height  Maximum Building Height 45 Feet; provided heights
range from 45-42 feet

Number of Dock Doors  Approximately 28 doors per building (4 at grade
and 23 dock); 81 total 

Parking Spaces Required  343 spaces 
Parking Spaces Provided  353 spaces; allowing for approximately 20% office

Review and Recommendation:
The three proposed flex industrial buildings allow for a mix of uses including
manufacturing, research and development, and office.  Generally ancillary uses
such as office and retail showroom are limited to occupy ten percent of a building
within industrial development unless noted; the proposal requests up to 20
percent office and/or retail showroom accordingly to comply with available parking. 

The request was reviewed for compliance with the design standards established
within the Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP), which was recently updated and
approved by the City Council in October 2021.  A mix of materials are
proposed including metal canopies with wood-like soffits, metal accents using



perforated panels or blades, variety of window shapes, and mix of colors were
used to enhance the proposed architecture.  All rears of buildings are internalized
to the site to screen all dock doors from view of adjacent streets.  A shaded
outdoor seating area is provided for each building with landscaping and on-site
pedestrian pathways connecting all buildings. In short, the proposed development
complies with CAAP's design guidelines that aim for higher level of design and
quality materials in industrial developments. 

The development of this property will enhance the area by completing Armstrong
Way from Hamilton Street east to McQueen Road.  The landscaping, walls,
entrances, and building elevations adjacent to future streets were thoroughly
reviewed to align with goals from the CAAP.  Hamilton Street is envisioned to be a
collector street to reduce truck traffic along McQueen Road.  A center
identification sign will be located at the intersection of Germann Road and
Hamilton Street with date palms. 

Planning staff has reviewed the request and supports the proposal citing
consistency with the General Plan and Chandler Airpark Area Plan, thus
recommending Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval subject to
conditions. 

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation
Airport Commission meeting January 12, 2022
Move to find no conflict with existing or planned airport uses.

In Favor: 7   Opposed 0
 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood notice was sent in lieu of a neighborhood meeting due to
lack of adjacent residential properties.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any concerns or
opposition to the request. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Preliminary Development Plan



Preliminary Development Plan
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions:
  

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development
Booklet, entitled “Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park” and kept on file in the
City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH21-0058, modified by such
conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler
City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the
Chandler City Council.
 

1.

Compliance with original conditions adopted by the City Council as Ordinance
No. 3229 in case DVR00-0028 Germann Commerce Center, except as
modified by condition herein.
 

2.

The landscaping shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than
at the time of planting. 
 

3.

Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs,
shall be designed in coordination with landscape plans, planting materials,
storm water retention requirements, and utility pedestals, so as not to create
problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required landscape
materials.
 

4.

Signage shall follow all applicable criteria of the City of Chandler Sign Code,
unless noted within the Development Booklet. 
 

5.

Fifty percent of the trees planted along the arterial streets shall be a minimum
of 36-inch box and 12-feet in height at the time of planting.
 

6.

All mechanical equipment, including HVAC, utility meters, etc. shall be
screened from view by material(s) that are architecturally integrated and
consistent with the proposed buildings.
 

7.

Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final
Development Plan approval; compliance with the details required by all
applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler and this Preliminary
Development Plan shall apply.
 

8.

A minimum of one electric vehicle charging station shall be provided at each9.



building.

Preliminary Plat
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat, subject to the following condition: 
  

Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the
details of all submittals required by code or condition.

1.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet 
Preliminary Plat 
Ordinance No. 3229 
Airport Conflicts Evaluation 



S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERMANN RD

S P
IO

NE
ER

 PW

E ARMSTRONG WY

S H
AM

ILT
ON

 ST

E SANTAN - SR202L FW

E PIONEER PW
E CELEBRATION DR

S 1
18

TH
 S

T

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S H
AM

ILT
ON

 ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Project Details
PDP for three flex industrial buildings
18.3 acres

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0058 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park ´

^

Germann Rd.

PARK
Tumbleweed

Park

PAD
Horizon

PARK
Los

Arboles
Park

COUNTY

PAD
Noria

PAD

PAD

AG-1

Santan/202 Fwy.
COUNTY

AG-1
PAD COUNTY

PAD

PAD
Elux

at
McQueen

I-2

COUNTY

PADPAD

AG-1



S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERMANN RD

S P
IO

NE
ER

 PW

E ARMSTRONG WY

S H
AM

ILT
ON

 ST

E SANTAN - SR202L FW

E PIONEER PW
E CELEBRATION DR

S 1
18

TH
 S

T

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S H
AM

ILT
ON

 ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Project Details
PDP for three flex industrial buildings
18.3 acres

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0058 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park ´

^

Germann Rd.

PARK
Tumbleweed

Park

PAD
Horizon

PARK
Los

Arboles
Park

COUNTY

PAD
Noria

PAD

PAD

AG-1

Santan/202 Fwy.
COUNTY

AG-1
PAD COUNTY

PAD

PAD
Elux

at
McQueen

I-2

COUNTY

PADPAD

AG-1



 

January 10, 2022 
 

  Preliminary Development Plan Review 
  Project: E Germann Rd & Hamilton St 
  Chandler, AZ 

 
PROJECT NARRATIVE (Preliminary Development Plan Review) 

 
LGE is excited to propose a new light industrial complex to be located at the Northeast 
Corner of East Germann and Hamilton Street on a 797,239 s.f. (18.30 net acre) site.  The 
property is currently zoned PAD.  The assessors parcel number is 303-28-001M.  The 
proposed project will contain a total of approximately 301,994 s.f. of building coverage, 
composed of (3) light industrial / office buildings comprised of 75,256 SF, 108,596 SF, 
and 118,142 S.F. respectively. 

LGE Design Group would like to understand, all city requirements and recommendations 
as applicable to determine project viability prior to developmental commitments. 

Legal Description: 

PRT SE4 SEC 3 DAF COM S4 COR OF SEC 3 TH N 60F TO POB TH CONT N 1264.19F TH E 
633.16F TH S 1244.48F TH W 35F TH S 20F TH W 597.02F TO POB EX TH PRT DAF COM 
S4 COR SD SEC TH N 60F TO POB TH CONT N 35F TH N 88D 57M E 40F TH S 45D 41M E 
28.12 TH S 15F TH S 88D 57M W 60F TO POB. 

Project Description: 

The building use ratio will follow the flex industrial recommendation of 20 percent and 80 
percent industrial use. Proposed parking would exceed the base code requirements of 
(343) required parking stalls and the recommended flex industrial recommendation with 
(353) parking stalls with a overall parking ratio of (1.17 cars / 1000) to be provided.  ADA 
parking to comprise 5% of total parking at a minimum. Refer to site plan for parking stall 
calculation for each use. Each building to including truck / trailer loading bays and 
dedicated storage. Proposed drive access provided on E. Germann Road as a shared 
driveway with adjacent property, along S. Hamilton Street via (2) drive access locations 
and E. Armstrong Way via (1) drive access location. 

Refuse enclosures will be provided for each building and contained within the screened 
truck yard respectively. 

Landscaping would be provided along all rights-of-ways, property boundaries, foundation 
planting and buffer landscape to be provided at each building accordingly.  The proposed 



 

landscaping would be native and complimentary plantings requiring low-water usage, per 
local ordinances.  Site screening would be provided as required, per city ordinance. 

A clean, modern aesthetic is intended for the overall building design utilizing colors and 
materials that are common in the area. The building materials, site, parking, and 
landscaping are all to be in accordance with code requirements and standards. The 
parapet heights will allow for roof top screening for all roof top equipment.  These units 
will be access via roof access ladders and hatches internal to the building. 
 
The exterior lighting for the buildings and parking area within the proposed project will be 
integrally designed as part of the building and outdoor pedestrian spaces.   The intent is 
to provide adequate safety while avoiding glare, hot spots and will comply with the dark 
sky ordinance.  All lighting will be LED lighting. 
 
 
 

 
END OF NARRATIVE 

 
 











































































 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  January 13, 2022 
 
TO:  Kevin Mayo 
 
FROM: Chris Andres 
 
SUBJECT: Airport Conflict Evaluation 
 Midway – Germann and Hamilton 
 Northwest Corner of Germann Road and Hamilton Street 
 
At their January 12, 2022 meeting, the Chandler Airport Commission 
("Commission") discussed the proposed Midway – Germann and Hamilton 
development located at the northwest corner of Germann Road and Hamilton 
Street. 
 
Finding: The Commission determined the proposed development does not 
constitute a conflict with existing or planned airport uses.  
 
Conflict(s) Cited:  None.  Please note that the final building height (including rooftop 
equipment) must not impact the departure surfaces from the Airport’s two 
runways. 
 
The Commission voted 7-0 to forward a report to the Planning Administrator 
indicating the finding noted above. 
 
cc:   Ryan Reeves 

David De La Torre 
 Lauren Schumann 
 
Attachment: Airport Conflict Evaluation – Germann and Hamilton 



 
 
 
MEMORANDUM  Airport - Memo No. 22-003 
 
Date:  January 12, 2022 
To:  Chandler Airport Commission 
From:  Airport Planning Administrator 
Subject: Airport Conflict Evaluation 
 Midway- Germann and Hamilton 
 North of the Northeast Corner Germann Road and Hamilton Street 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Airport Commission ("Commission") present an Airport Conflict 
Evaluation (ACE) report to the Zoning Administrator and City Council with a finding of "no 
conflict with airport uses" for the proposed Midway- Germann and Hamilton development. 
 
Background 
The approximately 18.30 +/- net acre site is located north of the northeast corner of 
Germann Road and Hamilton Street (Exhibit A - Vicinity Map, Exhibit B - Property Location) 
and is zoned Planned Area Development (PAD).  Adjacent land uses include industrial uses 
under County jurisdiction to the north and west; industrial uses to the east; and 
Tumbleweed Park to the south. 
 
The site is approximately 1 mile to the northwest of the Airport and is not located within of 
the 55ldn noise contour (Exhibit A- Vicinity Map, Exhibit B- Property Location). 
 
The proposed project is three light industrial buildings totaling approximately 302,000 
square feet (SF) (Exhibit C - Site Plan).  

 
The City of Chandler General Plan designates the property for Employment.  The 2021 
Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) designates the property Innovation District (Exhibit D – 
Chandler Airpark Area Plan Land Use Plan). 
 
Analysis 
The proposed development is consistent with the CAAP. Commercial and industrial land 
uses are generally compatible with airport operations.  The property will experience daily 
overflights from aircraft in the normal traffic pattern (Exhibit E – Flight Tracks).   
 
Based on the maximum allowable building heights, the proposed development does not 
appear to pose a hazard to flight safety or be an airspace obstruction.  The proposed 



building height does not appear to impact the approach and departure surfaces for either 
runway.  Final building structures, including all rooftop objects, must not impact the approach 
and departure surfaces for the Airport’s runways.  
 
The proposed project does not indicate the use of rooftop solar panels.  If solar panels are 
anticipated to be installed, the owner/applicant must complete a solar study and 
coordinate with Airport Administration to ensure that glare will not interfere with aircraft 
on approach or takeoff. 
 
Due to the site’s proximity to the Airport, the developer must file a Notice of Proposed 
Construction (FAA Form 7460-1) with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for (1) the 
final structure heights, including all rooftop antennas, parapets, light poles, and other 
equipment and (2) temporary construction equipment.  The form may be submitted online 
at https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/portal.jsp.  The FAA-assigned numbers for all 
evaluation cases should be provided to Airport Administration. 
 
The proposed project’s building design does not appear to create reflectivity issues with 
aircraft in the traffic pattern (Exhibit F – Building Elevations).  The use of non-reflective 
glazing and non-reflective paint is encouraged. 
 
Findings 

   No Conflict 

__    Low Conflict 

__    Moderate Conflict 

__    High Conflict 

    
Specific Area(s) of Conflict:  Not applicable. 
 
Recommended Corrective Actions: Not applicable.   
 
Public Notice/Meetings 
No neighborhood meeting was held due to the absence of residential units within 600 feet 
of the site; however, a notice to neighbors was transmitted. 
 
Proposed Motion   
Move to present an Airport Conflict Evaluation (ACE) report to the Zoning Administrator 
and City Council with a finding of "no conflict with airport uses" for the proposed Midway- 
Germann and Hamilton development. 
 
Attachments 



A. Vicinity Map 
B. Property Location 
C. Site Plan 
D. Chandler Airpark Area Plan Land Use Plan 
E. Flight Tracks 
F. Building Elevations 

 



Property 
Location

N 
Exhibit A: Vicinity Map



Property 
Location

Exhibit B: Property Location N 

Airpark Area

Property 
Location



Exhibit C: Site Plan



Property 
Location

Exhibit D: Chandler Airpark Area Plan – Land Use Plan



Above Mean Sea Level / Above Ground LevelAbove Mean Sea Level   /  Above Ground Level

<800’ AGL
>800’ AGL

AMSL
AMSL

N 

Queen Creek Rd

Germann Rd

Pecos Rd

Ocotillo Rd

Property 
Location

Above Mean Sea Level / Above Ground Level

Exhibit E: Flight Tracks

Loop 202



Exhibit F: Building Elevations



Exhibit F: Building Elevations



ITEM  5 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No.
PZ22-002
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator
From: David De La Torre, Planning Manager
Subject: PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church
Request: Use Permit extension to continue the utilization of an existing modular classroom

building.
Location: 800 W Galveston Street, generally located east of the northeast corner of Galveston

Street & Alma School Road
Applicant: Evangeline Colbert

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Use Permit
PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church to continue the utilization of an existing
modular classroom building, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Zoned Single-family District (SF-8.5)
1994; Use Permit for a modular building was first approved to be used as
classrooms and other church related activities
Use Permit has been extended 5 times since 1994 (including for 2 previous
churches; Tempe Korean Presbyterian and First Christian)
Last extension was approved on January 22, 2015 for a period of 5 years
Current Use Permit expired in January 2020

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Single-family
Residential (SF-8.5) South Single-family

Residential (SF-8.5)

East Single-family
Residential (SF-8.5) West Multi-family Residential

(MF-3)

Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development (for



Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development (for
PDP)
Size of modular
building 1,391 square feet

# of classrooms 3

Use of classrooms Instructional purposes; Head start classes, adult training
workshops, & ministry meetings

Head start class
hours Monday – Friday: 7:30am – 5:30pm

Review and Recommendation:
The church has an ongoing need to use the modular building for classes and ancillary
activities and does not have funding currently available to construct a permanent
building.  The educational and instructional activities are compatible with the church’s
operation and with neighboring single family residences.  Having been in place for 28
years (since 1994), staff is recommending approval without any further timing stipulation
as the building is appropriately integrated aesthetically into the church's campus,
presents itself as a permanent component with landscaping and other permanent site
improvements, and does not present any detriments to neighboring properties that
would prompt the need to remove or replace the structure in the future.  As such,
Planning staff finds the request to be consistent with the General Plan and applicable
zoning, and recommends approval subject to conditions.
 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler
Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting was held on November 16, 2021. A total of 9 people were
present: 3 residents, 2 city representatives, and 5 church representatives.
Residents in attendance asked if there would be an on-site meal program or an
overnight program for homeless people. The church representatives responded that
there will not be such programs.
The neighborhood meeting invitation was mailed to property owners within 600-feet
of the site and was posted on social media via NextDoor
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition to the
request.
Included in the attachments is a statement by two of the neighbors.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to recommend



Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to recommend
approval of the Use Permit, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Substantial expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits for the
modular building (site plan and narrative) shall void the Use Permit and require
re-application to and approval by the City of Chandler.
2. The modular building and overall site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly
manner. 
3. All landscaping shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the
time of planting.
4. This Use Permit does not include a specified timing condition.  This includes relief
of the one (1) year timing condition specified in City Code section 35-305.1.D

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Aerial Photo and Site Plan 
Narrative 
Site Photos 
Email Correspondence 



N 
JA

Y S
T

W GALVESTON ST

N A
LM

A S
CH

OO
L R

D

W IVANHOE ST

N 
CH

IPP
EW

A D
R

N A
PA

CH
E 

DR

W HARRISON ST

N 
PL

EA
SA

NT
 D

R

W MONTEREY ST

W TULSA ST

W TYSON ST

W DEL RIO ST

W OAKLAND ST

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

N 
BE

VE
RL

Y S
T

N 
KA

RE
N 

DR

N 
EM

ER
SO

N 
ST

N 
CH

IPP
EW

A P
L

N 
PR

IVA
TE

W MONTEREY PL

N 
CH

IPP
EW

A S
T

W TULSA ST

W MONTEREY ST

W IVANHOE ST

W OAKLAND ST

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

N 
PL

EA
SA

NT
 D

R

W TYSON ST

W DEL RIO ST

W IVANHOE ST

W OAKLAND ST

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
800 W. Galveston St.
Request Use Permit extension to continue the
utilization of an existing modular classroom building

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Galveston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church ´

^

PAD

MF-2

PARK
Harmony
Hollow

Park

PAD

MF-3
Butterfield

Park

SF-8.5
Karen Manor

SF-8.5
Sunnycrest

SCHOOL
Erie

Elementary

MF-2
Haciendas

SF-8.5
Tyson Manor

SF-8.5
Central
Estates C-1

MF-1

MF-2

SF-8.5
Serene Homes

PAD
Sherwood Park

SF-8.5
Thuderbird

Park

PAD

SF-8.5
Tonopah
Terrace

SF-8.5
Carla
Vista

C-1



N 
JA

Y S
T

W GALVESTON ST

N A
LM

A S
CH

OO
L R

D

W IVANHOE ST

N 
CH

IPP
EW

A D
R

N A
PA

CH
E 

DR

W HARRISON ST

N 
PL

EA
SA

NT
 D

R

W MONTEREY ST

W TULSA ST

W TYSON ST

W DEL RIO ST

W OAKLAND ST

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

N 
BE

VE
RL

Y S
T

N 
KA

RE
N 

DR

N 
EM

ER
SO

N 
ST

N 
CH

IPP
EW

A P
L

N 
PR

IVA
TE

W MONTEREY PL

N 
CH

IPP
EW

A S
T

W TULSA ST

W MONTEREY ST

W IVANHOE ST

W OAKLAND ST

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

N 
PL

EA
SA

NT
 D

R

W TYSON ST

W DEL RIO ST

W IVANHOE ST

W OAKLAND ST

N 
EV

ER
GR

EE
N 

ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
800 W. Galveston St.
Request Use Permit extension to continue the
utilization of an existing modular classroom building

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Galveston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church ´

^

PAD

MF-2

PARK
Harmony
Hollow

Park

PAD

MF-3
Butterfield

Park

SF-8.5
Karen Manor

SF-8.5
Sunnycrest

SCHOOL
Erie

Elementary

MF-2
Haciendas

SF-8.5
Tyson Manor

SF-8.5
Central
Estates C-1

MF-1

MF-2

SF-8.5
Serene Homes

PAD
Sherwood Park

SF-8.5
Thuderbird

Park

PAD

SF-8.5
Tonopah
Terrace

SF-8.5
Carla
Vista

C-1



PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church

Existing
Modular
Building

Galveston Street

Ja
y 

St
re

et

N







PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church 

Photographs of Existing Modular Building 

 



PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church 

Photographs of Existing Modular Building 

 



PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church 

Photographs of Existing Modular Building 

 



PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church 

Photographs of Existing Modular Building 

 

 

 



11/17/2021 Mail - Zachary Werdean - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADgxMDcwYTY2LWE4Y2ItNDA3MS05NzMzLTkyMDdkZTgzOTBlNAAQAAp9Wm2veeJIlFEq7Pn… 1/5

Re: Zoom meeting November 16th at 6:00 p.m.

Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov>
Wed 11/17/2021 1:11 PM
To:  Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com>; Evangeline Colbert <evcolbert@msn.com>
Cc:  Joshua Wright <Joshua.Wright@chandleraz.gov>; Mayor and Council <Mayor.andCouncil@chandleraz.gov>; David De La Torre <David.DeLaTorre@chandleraz.gov>; Kevin Mayo
<Kevin.Mayo@chandleraz.gov>

Hello Linda,

It is great to hear you were able to communicate with Ms. Colbert directly and that you are comfortable with the explana�on of use. 

The property located at 800 W Galveston St is zoned SF8.5 with an allowed use for a church on the property. The church has been there since 1975. The property
in the future can only con�nue to be a church or single-family 8,500 sq � lot houses. Any other use on the property would require the property to be rezoned or
receive a use permit, both ac�ons go through the public hearing process. The future inten�on for the City for the property is for it to con�nue as it is today. 

I will save wri�en correspondence. 

Best regards,

-Zach

Zachary Werdean, City Planner
City of Chandler, Development Services Dept. Planning Division
(480)782-3052
Zachary.werdean@chandleraz.gov

Chandleraz.gov 

From: Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 17, 2021 12:21 PM 
To: Evangeline Colbert <evcolbert@msn.com>; Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov> 
Cc: Joshua Wright <Joshua.Wright@chandleraz.gov>; Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov>; Mayor and Council <Mayor.andCouncil@chandleraz.gov> 
Subject: Re: Zoom mee�ng November 16th at 6:00 p.m.
 
Hello Zachary,

Mary and I were not able to get into the Zoom meeting, but we had the opportunity to Zoom with Ms. Colbert directly after the
meeting.  Mary and I felt comfortable with the explanation of use, but we would like to request that all written correspondence be in
the planning file when moving forward.  Additionally, we would like to have, in writing, what the future intentions of use for the
property.  We want to fully support our neighbor, SonRise Faith Community Church. Unfortunately, with our past dealing with the
city we feel that it’s necessary to have everything discussed in writing. It is very unfortunate that many residents have developed this
type of rapport with some city staff and departments especially since we rely on city to look our for our best interests. 

Thank you in advance for your assistance in processing our request, Linda and Mary 

On Nov 16, 2021, at 7:40 PM, Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> wrote:

Mary and I were disappointed that we could not log into the meeting until after it ended, so we were glad that we did get the opportunity to zoom with you
this evening.  We hope that you understand why we had reservations and needed clarification due to the ongoing issues in our neighborhood. My address is
1158 W Linda Lane, Chandler, AZ 85224. I will send you Marys address once I have her mailing address. 

We both felt that you have a such a beautiful and kind manner.  Please let us know if we can be of help to you with anything in the future.  We will be glad to
donate if you need snacks or items for your youth program.  

Our best, 
Linda and Mary 

On Nov 15, 2021, at 7:34 PM, Evangeline Colbert <evcolbert@msn.com> wrote:

The scope of "community at large” would primarily be the neighborhood surrounding the church. 
We are planning to have a Christmas caroling event at the church in December and will invite residents from the neighborhood to join
us.

Evangeline Colbert 
May the God of hope fill you with all joy and peace as you trust in Him. Romans 15:13

<Screen Shot 2020-08-13 at 11.22.39 AM.png>

http://chandleraz.gov/
mailto:lindasawyer7@yahoo.com
mailto:evcolbert@msn.com


11/17/2021 Mail - Zachary Werdean - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADgxMDcwYTY2LWE4Y2ItNDA3MS05NzMzLTkyMDdkZTgzOTBlNAAQAAp9Wm2veeJIlFEq7Pn… 2/5

www.EvangelineColbert.com

www.BooksByEvangeline.com

<Screen Shot 2020-08-13 at 11.28.29 AM.png>

On Nov 15, 2021, at 3:47 PM, Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> wrote:

Hello Evangeline,

First, it sounds like you do amazing work that touches many lives. Myself, as well as other neighbors, would never want to hinder
the services you provide to church members, youth, and Head Start programs. However, we do still have reservations about the
scope of community at large outreach. Please clarify your answer with specificity regarding the current and future community at
large programs you currently host or plan to host in the future? 

Thank you, Linda 

On Nov 15, 2021, at 9:30 AM, Evangeline Colbert <evcolbert@msn.com> wrote:

Ms. Sawyer,

Thanks for your input about the SonRise Use Permit with the City of Chandler.
I’m sorry for not replying sooner. I’ve been involved with coordinating a wedding since 11/10/21 through the weekend
and was not able to followup on emails.

SonRise Faith Community Center has been the owner of this property since late 2014. 
Our church’s goal is to serve others in a spirit of the love we share in Jesus Christ. 
We intend to be caring neighbors and do our part in maintaining a clean and safe neighborhood.

Your concerns are valid. I hope that the feedback you received from Zachary addressed those concerns.
Below is the response to the question that Zachary did not have information for:

What type of community programs will be hosted on property that are open to the public?
We recently held a shoe giveaway for families that was coordinated by Head Start. Additional programs will be
primarily geared toward family fun (Christmas program activities, Vacation Bible School, etc.) and Community Fairs
that empower people in the areas of heath, career-building, etc. 

The programs that we’ve hosted and plan for the future promote the well-being of our church members, the Head
Start families, and the community at large. 
Please be assured, we will continue to keep the health and safety of the neighbors in mind.

Let us know if you have additional questions. The Zoom meeting link is below.

Sincerely,

Evangeline Colbert 
May the God of hope fill you with all joy and peace as you trust in Him. Romans 15:13

<Screen Shot 2020-08-13 at 11.22.39 AM.png>

www.EvangelineColbert.com

www.BooksByEvangeline.com

<Screen Shot 2020-08-13 at 11.28.29 AM.png>

SONRISE ZOOM MEETING LINK FOR 11/16/19:

Topic: SRFCC Zoning
Time: Nov 16, 2021 06:00 PM Arizona

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81189452613

Meeting ID: 811 8945 2613
One tap mobile
+12532158782,,81189452613# US (Tacoma)
+13462487799,,81189452613# US (Houston)

Dial by your location

http://www.evangelinecolbert.com/
http://www.booksbyevangeline.com/
mailto:lindasawyer7@yahoo.com
mailto:evcolbert@msn.com
http://www.evangelinecolbert.com/
http://www.booksbyevangeline.com/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81189452613


11/17/2021 Mail - Zachary Werdean - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADgxMDcwYTY2LWE4Y2ItNDA3MS05NzMzLTkyMDdkZTgzOTBlNAAQAAp9Wm2veeJIlFEq7Pn… 3/5

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 811 8945 2613
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kee99TIj0

On Nov 12, 2021, at 9:30 AM, Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov> wrote:

Hello Linda,

I am available all day on Monday.

The reason for the use permit is because the City of Chandler does not allow temporary buildings
on property without a use permit. The use permit is for the modular structure. 

Is Head Start Program currently ongoing on Property? 
The head start program is a child education/day-care/school readiness program. Education has
been occurring on this property within the modular building since 1994. 

How many days a week does the applicant host youth programs, youth ministry, and Head Start
Programs?
Head start classes are Monday through Friday from 7:30am to 5:30pm. On the weekends the
building is used for church youth activities. The church plans to use the building seven days a
week. The modular building contains three classrooms. Each classroom
accommodates approximately 15 people. 

If they occur on alternate days and times why is the additional space needed?
There is no additional space being added to the site. They are looking to continue their programs
with the space that they have had with the modular building. 

Have the programs expanded to require more space ?
No additional space is being proposed. They are looking to continue using the space they have
currently been using in the past. 

What has the modular building been used for in the past?
The modular building has been used for education purposes since 1994. Education has included
children's arts and crafts, Korean language class, bible study, and ministry meetings for adult and
youth. These uses have been approved for this modular building in the past in 1994, 2006, 2009,
2015. The reason for the modular building is because they cannot afford a permanent building.
Their goal is to build a permanent building in the future so they do not need the modular building
or to go through the use permit approval process.

What type of community programs will be hosted on property that are open to the public?
I will CC Evangeline with Sonrise Faith Community Church, she can help answer this one!

Will the programs or ministry be geared to serving meals to individuals experiencing homeless or
drug/alcohol?
I have been told that there are no programs or ministry geared to serving meals experiencing
homeless or drug/alcohol. 

Will there be programs geared to providing overnight lodging to individuals? 
No programs providing overnight lodging to individuals. 

A�ached is their last use permit approval, their proposal now is iden�cal. 

Best regards,

-Zach

Zachary Werdean, City Planner
City of Chandler, Development Services Dept. Planning Division
(480)782-3052
Zachary.werdean@chandleraz.gov

Chandleraz.gov 

From: Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 11, 2021 12:56 AM 
To: Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov> 
Cc: Joshua Wright <Joshua.Wright@chandleraz.gov> 
Subject: Re: Zoom mee�ng November 16th at 6:00 p.m.
 
Hello Zachary,

 A neighbor visited the site and said that she observed activity on the property, so they must be having
meetings/gatherings, therefore, I’m not sure why a meeting couldn’t be held on site.  I prefer that you are involved in the
conversation, so I will attempt to schedule a meeting. Please provide me with several meeting times that will work for you,

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kee99TIj0
mailto:Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov
mailto:Zachary.werdean@chandleraz.gov
http://chandleraz.gov/
mailto:lindasawyer7@yahoo.com
mailto:Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov
mailto:Joshua.Wright@chandleraz.gov


11/17/2021 Mail - Zachary Werdean - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADgxMDcwYTY2LWE4Y2ItNDA3MS05NzMzLTkyMDdkZTgzOTBlNAAQAAp9Wm2veeJIlFEq7Pn… 4/5

so that I can coordinate with residents.  If a meeting can’t be scheduled prior to the scheduled Zoom meeting it
seems appropriate that the application be placed on hold to afford the opportunity for the residents to express their
concerns and receive have questions answered and responded addressed prior use permit approval being granted. Many
residents are at a disadvantage in being heard when meetings are held by Zoom.  Some residents don’t
have Internet, computers, or the knowledge of how to use Zoom due to economic circumstances or age. 

Meanwhile, a few concerns that we have are what type of other uses would be held on the property?  Perhaps you could
forward a few questions to applicant and we could receive some responses prior to the meeting, via email prior to the
meeting.

Is Head Start Program currently ongoing on Property? 
How many days a week does the applicant host youth programs, youth ministry, and Head Start Programs?
If they occur on alternate days and times why is the additional space needed?
Have the programs expanded to require more space ?
What has the modular building been used for in the past?
What type of community programs will be hosted on property that are open to the public?
Will the programs or ministry be geared to serving meals to individuals experiencing homeless or drug/alcohol?
Will there be programs geared to providing overnight lodging to individuals?

Above are a few concerns expressed to me.  Additionally, an overwhelming concern expressed is that when programs
geared to homeless or drug and alcohol ministry are held in neighborhoods these programs often place health and safety
burdens on residents in their own neighborhood.  Many times when the programs ends for the day the individuals have no
transportation, therefore they remain in the neighborhood. As there are no public restrooms in neighborhoods many
residents have had individuals defecate/urinate in their yard/alley.  A wide range of issues include; individuals approaching
residents in their own yard asking them for money, sleeping in alley, urinating/defecating in yards/alley, and wandering the
neighborhood/alley leaving behind empty liquor containers and drug paraphernalia.  Needless to say residents are
concerned with these on going problems and have a legitimate concern for the health and safety issues that could arise in
the neighborhood.  

If the permit use is hosting ministry involving the above we ask the city not to grant the permit of use on this property.  All
Chandler residents deserve clean, healthy, and safe neighborhoods.

Thank you, concerned residents

On Nov 4, 2021, at 3:47 PM, Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov> wrote:s 

Hello Linda,

Thank you for reaching our with your concerns.  

The neighborhood mee�ng is being hosted online due to the applicant s�ll being
worried about health concerns due to the pandemic. If you do have addi�onal
concerns and would like to talk to the applicant about what the site will be used for,
please reach out to Evangeline with Sonrise Faith Community Church at (480)-968-
8858. She will be happy to talk about the any poten�al uses of the modular building in
addi�on to the youth programs, ministry, and Head Start program that are looking to
con�nue at the church. 

If you or any other residents would like to meet with me in person, I would be happy to
also schedule that with you to discuss the project more. 

Best regards,

-Zach 

Zachary Werdean, City Planner
City of Chandler, Development Services Dept. Planning Division
(480)782-3052
Zachary.werdean@chandleraz.gov

Chandleraz.gov 

From: Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, November 4, 2021 1:42 PM 
To: Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> 
Cc: Zachary Werdean <Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov>; Joshua Wright
<Joshua.Wright@chandleraz.gov>; Mayor and Council <Mayor.andCouncil@chandleraz.gov> 
Subject: Re: Zoom mee�ng November 16th at 6:00 p.m.
 
To clarify, residents welcome youth programs, ministry, and even Head Start.  It will be what other
community activities will be held on site. 

On Nov 4, 2021, at 1:27 PM, Linda Sawyer <lindasawyer7@yahoo.com> wrote:

Hello zachary,

I am writing to express my concern over the November 16th, 6:00 p.m. notice of
neighborhood meeting scheduled for zoom.

I spoke with a resident that has expressed her concerns on how this meeting will be
conducted. I would like to formally request that the meeting be held in the neighborhood,
perhaps with the location, so that all the members of this community can participate.

Zoom is not the most appropriate forum for this meeting as many of the residents in this
area are elderly, low income, do not have access to the internet or the knowledge of how to
participate in a zoom meeting.

mailto:Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov
mailto:Zachary.werdean@chandleraz.gov
http://chandleraz.gov/
mailto:lindasawyer7@yahoo.com
mailto:lindasawyer7@yahoo.com
mailto:Zachary.Werdean@chandleraz.gov
mailto:Joshua.Wright@chandleraz.gov
mailto:Mayor.andCouncil@chandleraz.gov
mailto:lindasawyer7@yahoo.com


11/17/2021 Mail - Zachary Werdean - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADgxMDcwYTY2LWE4Y2ItNDA3MS05NzMzLTkyMDdkZTgzOTBlNAAQAAp9Wm2veeJIlFEq7Pn… 5/5

I am therefore requesting that you schedule the meeting at the location site.  This is the only
way to ensure participation of the community concerned.

Thank you, Linda Sawyer 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or
a�achments.

NOTICE: This E-mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18
U.S.C. ss 2510-2521, is confidential and is legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any retention, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly
prohibited. Please delete if received in error and notify sender. Thank you kindly.

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or a�achments.

NOTICE: This E-mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. ss
2510-2521, is confidential and is legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
retention, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please delete if received in
error and notify sender. Thank you kindly. <ZUP13-0024.pdf>

CAUTION: This Email is from an EXTERNAL source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking on any links or a�achments.

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature


ITEM  6 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. PZ22-003
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator 

David de la Torre, Planning Manager 
From: Harley Mehlhorn, Associate Planner
Subject: PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality DBA Recreo 
Request: Entertainment Use Permit approval to allow live entertainment and speakers

inside and on an outdoor patio.
Location: 28 S. San Marcos Place, generally located ¼ mile south of the southwest

corner of Arizona Avenue and Chandler Boulevard
Applicant:Niels Kreipke, Owner 

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Use Permit case 
PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality DBA Recreo to allow live entertainment and
speakers inside and on an outdoor patio, subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Zoned City Center District (CCD) 
CCD Zoning code requires Entertainment Use Permit approval for any live
entertainment or outdoor speakers for businesses located less than 1,320
feet from the nearest residentially zoned property 
Formerly occupied by El Zocalo, which featured live entertainment on
weekends as granted by a previous Liquor Use Permit 

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Existing commercial
building zoned CCD  South Existing commercial

building zoned CCD 

East San Marcos Place  West
An alley, then an existing
commercial building zoned
CCD 

Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development
(for PDP)
Hours of entertainment  M-Th 10am-10pm

Friday 7am - 2am
Saturday 7am - 2am
Sunday 7am - 10pm

Building square footage 3,700 sq. ft. 
Patio square footage  5,800 sq. ft. 
Seats 240

Review and Recommendation:
Recreo is a restaurant that will be located in the space formerly occupied by El
Zocalo in downtown Chandler.  The restaurant is proposing to offer various types
of entertainment, inclusive of DJ's, live amplified bands, outdoor speakers, and
dancing.  Per Zoning Code section 35-305(4), an Entertainment Use Permit is
required when alcoholic beverages are sold or served; there is entertainment
activity provided outdoors with the property being located 1,320 feet or less from a
residentially zoned property, and/or if there is entertainment provided indoors with
the property being located 600 feet or less from a residentially zoned property. 
The distance is measured from the closest exterior wall or fence of any indoor or
outdoor space occupied by the subject establishment to the closest property line
of a residentially zoned property.  Residentially zoned property is located
approximately 512 feet from Recreo,  triggering the need for an Entertainment
Use Permit. 

The former business in the space, El Zocalo, had a Liquor Use Permit which
permitted live entertainment only on weekends until 2:00 a.m. The proposed hours
of operation for Recreo reflect this requirement with reduced hours being
proposed during weekdays while keeping the weekends consistent with the
previous approval. The proposed hours of operation are consistent with other
approvals that have been granted within Downtown, inclusive of The Perch and
The Stillery, which were approved in 2016 and 2021, respectively. Planning staff
has reviewed the request and finds it consistent with the General Plan; the



Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval subject to conditions. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media
via NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on December 30, 2021 at which no
neighbors attended
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition
to this request 

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Use Permit, subject to the following conditions: 

Substantial expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits (Site
Plan, Floor Plan and Narrative) shall void the Entertainment Use Permit and
require new Entertainment Use Permit application and approval.

1.

The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner. 2.
The hours of live entertainment shall be limited to: Monday - Thursday 10AM
to 10PM, Friday 10AM to 2AM, Saturday 7AM to 2AM, and Sunday 7AM to
10PM 

3.

Entertainment Uses shall be controlled so as to not unreasonably disturb area
residents. 

4.

The establishment shall provide a contact phone number for a responsible
person (i.e. bar owner and/or manager) to any interested neighbors or
property owners to resolve noise complaints quickly and directly.

5.

The Entertainment Use Permit shall remain in effect for two (2) years from the
date of City Council approval.  Continuation of the Entertainment Use Permit
beyond the expiration date shall require re-application and approval by the
City Council.

6.

 

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Narrative 
Site Plan 





S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W BOSTON ST

W BUFFALO ST

S C
AL

IFO
RN

IA 
ST

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E BOSTON ST

E BUFFALO ST

W COMMONWEALTH AV

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S O
RE

GO
N 

ST

W PRIVATE

E COMMONWEALTH AV

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L
N 

SA
N 

MA
RC

OS
 PL

S W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Ar

izo
na

 A
ve

.

Proposed Project Details
28 S. San Marcos Pl.
Request Entertainment Use Permit approval to
allow live entertainment and speakers inside
and on an outdoor patio

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Boston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD

CCD

PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality LLC DBA Recreo ´

^

PAD CCDCCD/PAD

MF-2

PAD

C-3C-2PAD

PAD

CCD

PAD
CCD/PAD

PAD

C-2

PAD

CCD/PAD

CC
D/

PA
D



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W BOSTON ST

W BUFFALO ST

S C
AL

IFO
RN

IA 
ST

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E BOSTON ST

E BUFFALO ST

W COMMONWEALTH AV

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

N A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S O
RE

GO
N 

ST

W PRIVATE

E COMMONWEALTH AV

S S
AN

 M
AR

CO
S P

L
N 

SA
N 

MA
RC

OS
 PL

S W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST

N 
PR

IVA
TE

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site
Ar

izo
na

 A
ve

.

Proposed Project Details
28 S. San Marcos Pl.
Request Entertainment Use Permit approval to
allow live entertainment and speakers inside
and on an outdoor patio

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Boston St.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD

CCD

PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality LLC DBA Recreo ´

^

PAD CCDCCD/PAD

MF-2

PAD

C-3C-2PAD

PAD

CCD

PAD
CCD/PAD

PAD

C-2

PAD

CCD/PAD

CC
D/

PA
D



Entertainment Use Permit 
12/15/21 

Business Entity: Celoni Hospitality, LLC   DBA RECREO 

Location:  28 S. San Marcos Place, Chandler AZ 85225 (DOWNTOWN CHANDLER) 

Business Type:  Full-service restaurant and bar with outdoor patio dining 

Entertainment Type: Live music and general entertainment (including single person and multi-person bands), 
Disk Jockey (DJ), movie nights (projection screen with sound), televisions (sports and 
music videos), stand-up comedy, talent shows, speakers, dancing, games (cornhole, 
Ping-Pong, etc.) 

Hours Requested: Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays - 10am to 10pm 

Square Footage: 

Seats:   

Smoking: 

Improvements: 

Signage: 

Business Type: 

Fridays - 10am to 2am (next day) 
Saturdays - 7am to 2am (next day) 
Sundays - 7am to 10pm 

Indoor +/-3700 sf and patio +/-5800sf 

+/-240 

Not permitted 

Addition of outdoor stage, speakers, and TVs plus the expansion of the patio area. 

Neon lit sign on building façade, neon lit sign facing alley, colonnade signs and typical 
storefront signage 

Restaurant and Bar – similar to El Zocalos that was there for 25 years.  RECREO is a full-
service restaurant with a unique menu and design that compliments the downtown 
area. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

Celoni Hospitality, LLC DBA RECREO 

_____________________ 
Niels Kreipke, Mgr. 



 



ITEM  7 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No.
22-003
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH21-0087 The Forum
Request: Use Permit expansion of premises for a Series 6 Bar license and an Entertainment

Use Permit for live music inside and on an outdoor patio.
Location: 2301 South Stearman Drive
Applicant: Arizona Liquor Industry Consultants, Robert Leavitt

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of PLH21-0087 The Forum
Use Permit expansion of premises for a Series 6 Bar license and an Entertainment Use
Permit for live music inside and on an outdoor patio located at 2301 S. Stearman Drive,
subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for commercial and retail uses.
Zoning code requires Use Permit approval for any bar license.
Zoning code requires Entertainment Use Permits approval for any live entertainment
or speakers provided outdoors that is located 1,320 feet or less from a residentially
zoned property.
The closest residential property is approximately 900 feet to the east, across Gilbert
Road.
Liquor Use Permit approved in 2017 for a Series 6 bar license and live music.

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Charter School (Great
Hearts) South Daycare (Kids Incorporated

Learning Center)
East Vacant commercial parcel West Industrial (Aero Zone)



Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development (for
PDP)
  
Size of Business 20,214 sq. ft.
Size of Patio 3,361 sq. ft. total (2,181 sq. ft. existing and 1,180 sq. ft. new)
Seating and
serving 221 persons

Hours of
Business
Operation

Monday-Friday: 8 am - 5 pm
Saturday: 8 am - 3 pm
Applicant proposes to extend business hours to no later than 12:00
am/Midnight on any day of operation (including Sundays) for Third
party events.
Staff recommends limiting the hours of live entertainment on the patio
only to no later than 10 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and no later
than 11 p.m. on Friday and Saturday and shall be limited to acoustic
and non-amplified instruments.

Type of Live
Entertainment

Popular, Blues and Country Western bands (not limited to these
genres)
Disc Jockeys (DJs) New stage outdoor
New outdoor stage
Played through indoor and patio speakers

Hours of Live
Entertainment

Indoors and Outdoors
Monday - Friday: 8:00 am - 5:00 pm Saturday: 8 am - 3 pm
Applicant proposes to extend indoor live entertainment to 12:00
am/Midnight, Seven (7) days a week. Staff recommends limiting the
hours of live music and entertainment (i.e. dancing) on the outdoor
patio to be no later than 10 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and no later
than 11 p.m. on Friday and Saturday and shall be limited to acoustic
and non-amplified instruments.

Additional
Entertainment

7 new TVs on patio, pool table, 8 new outdoor speakers, Disc jockeys
and dancing inside and outside.

Review and Recommendation:
Per Zoning Code section 35-305(4), an Entertainment Use Permit is required when
alcoholic beverages are sold or served; there is entertainment activity provided outdoors
with the property being located 1,320 ft. or less from a residentially zoned property,
and/or if there is entertainment provided indoors with the property being located 600 ft. or
less from a residentially zoned property. The distance is measured from the closest
exterior wall or fence of any indoor or outdoor space occupied by the subject
establishment to the closest property line of a residentially zoned property. The nearest
single-family residential development is located approximately 900 ft. to the east, across
Gilbert Road.

A Use Permit is required for a Series 6 liquor license for bars to operate within a



commercially zoned district. The Forum currently operates with a Series 6 liquor license
and is requesting to expand the premises of the bar. In 2017 a liquor use permit was
approved for a Series 6 bar license along with limited live entertainment. A time
stipulation of one-year was stipulated, however, during that time since expiration, several
construction related issues arose which involved delay in the processing of the
Entertainment Use Permit. As such, the applicant has addressed the life-safety issues
and is proceeding with these requests.

The Forum proposes to expand its indoor and outdoor live entertainment including bands,
DJs, and additional outdoor speakers. Business operations of The Forum allow events to
occur after regular business hours. The applicant requests indoor live entertainment to
extend until 12 am/Midnight, seven days a week. To be consistent with approved
Entertainment Use Permits for establishments located in proximity to residential
developments, it is recommended to limit the hours of live entertainment during the week.
Staff recommends all live entertainment occurring within the outdoor patio, including
dancing, speakers, and bands conclude by 10:00 pm, Sunday through Thursday and by
11:00 pm on Friday and Saturday. This proposed stipulation was presented to the
applicant and has agreed to limiting hours of live entertainment on the outdoor patio.
           
The Use Permit does not override any state liquor licensing requirements. The applicant
must comply with all State regulations that pertain to the liquor license.

Planning staff has reviewed the request and finds it to be consistent with the General
Plan and applicable zoning. Live entertainment is a compatible land use with the
surrounding commercial development and the residential development located to the
east, across Gilbert Rd. with the proposed stipulations.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
The request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler
Zoning Code.
A neighborhood notification sign and public hearing sign were posted on the
business.
The neighborhood notification was posted on social media via Nextdoor.
A neighborhood notification letter was sent out in lieu of a meeting due to the
nearest residential being 900 ft. east of the site.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition to the
request.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to recommend
approval of the Use Permit and Entertainment Use Permit, subject to the following
conditions: 

Expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits (Site Plan, Floor Plan and
Narrative) shall void the Use Permit and require a new Use Permit application and
approval.

1.



The Use Permit is non-transferable to any other location.2.
This Use Permit approval is solely for a Series 6 Bar license.3.
Expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits (Site Plan, Floor Plan and
Narrative) shall void the Entertainment Use Permit and require a new Entertainment
Use Permit application and approval.

4.

The Entertainment Use Permit is non-transferable to any other location.5.
The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.6.
No noise shall be emitted from external speakers or live entertainment in such a
manner that exceeds the general level of noise by uses outside the premises of the
business and disturbs adjacent businesses and residential areas.

7.

Music shall be controlled so as to not unreasonably disturb area residents and shall
not exceed the ambient noise level as measured at the commercial property line.

8.

The establishment shall provide a contact phone number for a responsible person
(i.e. bar owner and/or manager) to any interested neighbors or property owners to
resolve complaints quickly and directly.

9.

Live music and entertainment (i.e. dancing) on the patio may occur no later than 10
p.m. Sunday through Thursday and no later than 11 p.m. on Friday and Saturday and
shall be limited to acoustic and non- amplified instruments.

10.

The Entertainment Use Permit shall remain in effect for two (2) years from the date
of Council approval. Continuation of the Entertainment Use Permit beyond the
expiration date shall require reapplication to and approval by the City of Chandler.

11.

The Use Permit does not override any State liquor licensing requirements. The
applicant must comply with all regulations that pertain to the liquor license.

12.

Attachments
Vicinity maps 
Narrative 
Site Plan 
Photographs 



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E GERMANN RD

E INSIGHT WY

S S
TE

AR
MA

N 
DR

E RYAN RD

S D
OU

GL
AS

 D
R

E LARK DR

E CESSNA DR

E KINGBIRD PL

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R E SPARROW PL

E BLUEBIRD PL

E ORIOLE WY

S R
IN

CO
N 

DR

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

E GERMANN RD

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
2301 S. Stearman Dr.
Use Permit for Series 6 Bar license &
Entertainment Use Permit for live
entertainment indoors and on patio

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Germann Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0087 The Forum ´

^

PAD

PAD
Peterson Farms

PAD

Town
of

Gilbert

PAD

PAD

AP-1

PAD
Paseo Trail

PAD

Ano-
2 6

0ld
n

Nois
e C

on
tou

r

Ano-1 55ldn

Noise Contour



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E GERMANN RD

E INSIGHT WY

S S
TE

AR
MA

N 
DR

E RYAN RD

S D
OU

GL
AS

 D
R

E LARK DR

E CESSNA DR

E KINGBIRD PL

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R E SPARROW PL

E BLUEBIRD PL

E ORIOLE WY

S R
IN

CO
N 

DR

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

E GERMANN RD

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
2301 S. Stearman Dr.
Use Permit for Series 6 Bar license &
Entertainment Use Permit for live
entertainment indoors and on patio

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Germann Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH21-0087 The Forum ´

^

PAD

PAD
Peterson Farms

PAD

Town
of

Gilbert

PAD

PAD

AP-1

PAD
Paseo Trail

PAD

Ano-
2 6

0ld
n

Nois
e C

on
tou

r

Ano-1 55ldn

Noise Contour



City of Chandler 
Planning Department 
Attn: Ms. Susan Fiala, Senior City Planner 
175 South Arizona Avenue 
Chandler, Arizona 85225 
 
Re: The Forum 
2301 South Stearman Drive 
Chandler Arizona 85386  
Maricopa County Assessor Parcel: 303-31-381 
Legal Description: VERSANTE AT CHANDLER AIRPARK LOT 2 REPLAT MCR 
1330-22 
Chandler Case: PLH21-0087 
 
Ms. Susan Fiala:  
 
Our firm is the applicant on behalf of The Forum (as referenced above) seeking 
approval of the Chandler Use Permit application submitted herewith.  The 
applicant holds a valid Arizona Liquor License Series 6 for a Bar (ADLLC 
06070292).  The Forum, a long-established member of the Chandler business 
community is applying for a Use Permit to allow expansion of their existing 
licensed premises of two thousand one hundred eighty-one (2,181) square feet 
to include an additional attached outdoor patio of one thousand one hundred 
eighty (1,180) square feet for a total of three thousand three hundred sixty-one 
(3,361) square feet. The requested addition will increase the seating and 
serving capacity from one hundred forty-six persons (146) to two hundred 
twenty-one (221) persons, thus adding an additional seventy-five (75) persons 
to the total seating and serving capacity. The additional patio will have eight (8) 
combination entrances/exits.  
 
Upon approval of the Chandler Use Permit applied for herein, it is the intention 
of the business to apply to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control for an Extension of Premises (original ADLLC 06070292) to expand the 
licensed serving area of alcoholic beverages to include the additional attached 
patio area described above.  
 
The business will continue its existing approved hours of operation between 
0800 – 1700 hours Monday through Friday and 0800-1500 hours on Saturday.    

 

                       

ARIZONA LIQUOR 

INDUSTRY CONSULTANTS 

P.O. Box 2502  

Chandler, Arizona 85244 

(480) 730-2675   Phone (480) 730-2676   Fax 



⚫  Page 2  January 4, 2022 

The Forum contracts from time to time with third party customers who 
sponsor events which are may be held both indoors and/or outdoors at the 
discretion of the applicant.   The outdoor events will be held in/on the attached 
outdoor patio as applied for herein. 
 
The Forum further requests the approval to include the applicant’s permission 
to extend at its discretion the regular approved hours of operation (between 
8:00 AM-5:00 PM Monday through Friday, and 8:00 AM – 3:00 PM on 
Saturdays) to no later than 12:00 AM Midnight for any day of operation, 
(including Sundays) when said contracted third party events are being held. 
 
 
The business is also seeking approval of an Entertainment Use Permit for the 
above-described premises to include the following: 
- Adding seven (7) Televisions to the outdoor attached patio. 
- Adding eight (8) outdoor speakers to be installed on the attached outdoor 
patio described herein.  
- Live musical entertainment both inside and/or outside which will be played   
through interior and/or outdoor patio speakers.  
- Musical entertainment may be provided indoors and/or outdoors between 
8:00 AM – 5:00 PM during weekdays and 8:00 AM – 3:00 PM on Saturdays.  
Such hours of operation may, at the discretion of the applicant, extend to 8:00 
AM – 12:00 AM Midnight any day of the week including Saturday and Sunday. 
- The type of musical entertainment will include but not be limited to Popular, 
Blues and Country/Western 
- The applicant will provide live entertainment by Disc Jockeys (“DJ’s) and/or 
live bands both inside and/or outside with optional dancing inside and/or 
outside at its discretion within the stipulated approved hours of operation and 
as extended from time to time as described herein. 
 
 The business will not add, change or remove the existing building or 
monument signage. The business does not and will not permit smoking of any 
type within the existing or the additional attached outside patio as applied for 
herein. The requested outside attached patio is approximately nine hundred 
(900) horizontal feet from any residential boundary line.  
 
 
 
The property at 2301 South Stearman Drive, Chandler, Arizona 85286 is wholly 
owned by Stearman Drive, LLC, of which the principal(s) of The Forum is/are 
the sole Manager and Member of said limited liability company. As such, no 
third (3rd) party permission is required for the Use Permit applied for herein.  
 
 
 
 



⚫  Page 3  January 4, 2022 

 
The granting of this Use Permit will not cause any significant change in 
vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic in the adjacent areas. There exists sufficient 
vehicular parking in, on and around the applicant’s premises, and is in full 
compliance with the City of Chandler required parking provisions.  The 
surrounding area contains other restaurants and stores, and should not cause 
any additional nuisances such as odor, dust, gas, vibration, smoke, heat or 
glare. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, Robert Leavitt 
 
 
Robert W. Leavitt, Arizona Liquor Law Compliance Specialist 
Arizona Liquor Industry Consultants 
1811 South Alma School Road 
Suite # 268 
Mesa, Arizona  85210 
Office: 480-730-2675 
Fax: 480-730-2676 
Mobile: 480-290-1685 
 

 
 
 



The Forum 
2301 S Stearman Dr. 

 
Site Plan and Patio Plans 

 

 

 



 

 North 

Proposed 
Stage 
area 



1 
 

Applicant Photographs 

Outdoor patio, bar, and speaker locations 

 

 

 



2 
 

 

 

  



3 
 

 

 

  



4 
 

 

 



5 
 

 



AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 PHX210508 

© 2021 COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES  3 

 

 



SUBJECT PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 PHX210508 

© 2021 COLLIERS INTERNATIONAL VALUATION & ADVISORY SERVICES  4 

EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

EXTERIOR PROFILE 
 

EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

EXTERIOR PROFILE 
 

EXTERIOR PROFILE 

 

EXTERIOR PROFILE 
 



ITEM  8 

Planning & Zoning Commission      Development Services  Memo No.
PZ22-007
       

Date: 01/19/2022
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator
From: Julie San Miguel, Sr Administrative Assistant 
Subject:Cancellation of the February 2, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission

Hearing

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission cancel February 2, 2022, Planning and
Zoning Commission Hearing. 


	Agenda
	AI 1441 Study Session & Regular Meeting Minutes of December 15, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission
	       ATT_December 15, 2021 Study Session Minutes
	       ATT_December 15, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	AI 1442 PLH21-0071 Kerry’s Car Care
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	PLH21-0071
	PLH21-0071-air-photo

	AI 987 PLH21-0028 Gold Medal Gym
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet
	AI 1455 PLH21-0058/ PLT21-0054 Germann & Hamilton Industrial Park
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet 
	       ATT_Preliminary Plat 
	LG88PREPLAT-Council Exhibit-PP1
	LG88PREPLAT-Council Exhibit-PP2
	LG88PREPLAT-Council Exhibit-PP3

	       ATT_Ordinance No. 3229
	       ATT_Airport Conflicts Evaluation
	AI 1420 PLH21-0068 Sonrise Faith Community Church
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Aerial Photo and Site Plan
	Slide Number 1

	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Site Photos
	       ATT_Email Correspondence
	AI 1413 PLH21-0092 Celoni Hospitality DBA Recreo 
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Site Plan
	AI 1397 UP/EUP PLH21-0087 The Forum
	       ATT_Vicinity maps
	PLH21-0087.pdf
	PLH21-0087-air-photo.pdf

	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Photographs
	Patio Bar Speaker photos.pdf
	FORUM PHOTOS  (1).pdf

	AI 1489 Cancellation of the February 2, 2022, Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing

